
 
NOTICE 

 
OF 

 
MEETING 

 
SCHOOL IMPROVEMENT FORUM 

 
will meet on 

 
Monday 6 February 2023 

 
At 5.00 pm 

 
by 
 

Virtual Meeting - Online access and on RBWM YouTube  
 
 

 
To: Members of the School Improvement Forum 

 
Councillors Stuart Carroll (Chairman), David Coppinger (Vice-Chairman) and 
Catherine Del Campo  

 
 
Substitute Members 
 
Councillors David Hilton, Sayonara Luxton and Amy Tisi 
 
 
 

 
Kirsty Hunt, Service Lead – Electoral & Democratic Services - Issued: 27th January 2023 

 
Members of the Press and Public are welcome to attend Part I of this meeting. The agenda is available on the Council’s 

web site at www.rbwm.gov.uk or contact the Democratic Services Officer Mark Beeley 01628 796345 / 
mark.beeley@rbwm.gov.uk 

 
 
Recording of Meetings – In line with the council’s commitment to transparency the Part I (public) section of the meeting 

will be streamed live and recorded via Zoom. By participating in the meeting by audio and/or video, you are giving 
consent to being recorded and acknowledge that the recording will be in the public domain. If you have any questions 

regarding the council’s policy, please speak to Democratic Services or a Legal representative prior to the meeting. 
 

Public Document Pack

https://www.youtube.com/user/WindsorMaidenhead/videos
http://www.rbwm.gov.uk/
http://www.rbwm.gov.uk/


 

 

AGENDA 
 
 
Item Subject Page 

  
1.   Apologies for Absence 

 
To receive any apologies for absence. 
 

- 
 

 
2.   Declarations of Interest 

 
To receive any declarations of interest. 
 

3 - 4 
 

 
3.   Minutes 

 
To consider the minutes of the meeting held on 13th October 2022. 
 

5 - 10 
 

 
4.   Pupil Premium and Quality Teach First programme 

 
To hear about the programmes. 
 

Verbal 
Report 

 
 
5.   Initial Teaching Training Update 

 
To receive an update on teaching training. 
 

Verbal 
Report 

 
 
6.   Attendance changes for September 2023 

 
To receive a verbal report on the proposed changes to school attendance. 
 

Verbal 
Report 

 
 
7.   SEND Strategy Implementation Update 

 
To receive a progress update on the implementation of the SEND strategy. 
 

Verbal 
Report 

 
 
8.   Delivering Better Values Update 

 
To receive an update on the Delivering Better Values programme. 
 

Verbal 
Report 

 
 
9.   Dates of Future Meetings 

 
At 5pm and all via Zoom: 
 

• Thursday 22nd June 2023 
• Thursday 19th October 2023 
• Tuesday 6th February 2024 

 

- 
 

 
 



Revised October 2022 

 

MEMBERS’ GUIDE TO DECLARING INTERESTS AT MEETINGS 

Disclosure at Meetings 

If a Member has not disclosed an interest in their Register of Interests, they must make the declaration 
of interest at the beginning of the meeting, or as soon as they are aware that they have a Disclosable 
Pecuniary Interest (DPI) or Other Registerable Interest. If a Member has already disclosed the interest 
in their Register of Interests they are still required to disclose this in the meeting if it relates to the matter 
being discussed. 

Any Member with concerns about the nature of their interest should consult the Monitoring Officer in 
advance of the meeting.  

Non-participation in case of Disclosable Pecuniary Interest (DPI) 

Where a matter arises at a meeting which directly relates to one of your DPIs (summary below, 
further details set out in Table 1 of the Members’ Code of Conduct) you must disclose the interest, 
not participate in any discussion or vote on the matter and must not remain in the room 
unless you have been granted a dispensation. If it is a ‘sensitive interest’ (as agreed in advance by 
the Monitoring Officer), you do not have to disclose the nature of the interest, just that you have an 
interest. Dispensation may be granted by the Monitoring Officer in limited circumstances, to enable 
you to participate and vote on a matter in which you have a DPI. 

Where you have a DPI on a matter to be considered or is being considered by you as a Cabinet 
Member in exercise of your executive function, you must notify the Monitoring Officer of the interest 
and must not take any steps or further steps in the matter apart from arranging for someone else to 
deal with it. 

DPIs (relating to the Member or their partner) include: 

• Any employment, office, trade, profession or vocation carried on for profit or gain. 

• Any payment or provision of any other financial benefit (other than from the council) made to the 
councillor during the previous 12-month period for expenses incurred by him/her in carrying out 
his/her duties as a councillor, or towards his/her election expenses 

• Any contract under which goods and services are to be provided/works to be executed which has 
not been fully discharged. 

• Any beneficial interest in land within the area of the council. 

• Any licence to occupy land in the area of the council for a month or longer. 

• Any tenancy where the landlord is the council, and the tenant is a body in which the relevant 
person has a beneficial interest in the securities of. 

• Any beneficial interest in securities of a body where: 
a) that body has a place of business or land in the area of the council, and 
b) either (i) the total nominal value of the securities exceeds £25,000 or one hundredth of the 
total issued share capital of that body or (ii) the total nominal value of the shares of any one class 
belonging to the relevant person exceeds one hundredth of the total issued share capital of that 
class. 

Any Member who is unsure if their interest falls within any of the above legal definitions should seek 
advice from the Monitoring Officer in advance of the meeting.  

Disclosure of Other Registerable Interests 

Where a matter arises at a meeting which directly relates to one of your Other Registerable 
Interests (summary below and as set out in Table 2 of the Members Code of Conduct), you must 
disclose the interest. You may speak on the matter only if members of the public are also 
allowed to speak at the meeting but otherwise must not take part in any discussion or vote on 
the matter and must not remain in the room unless you have been granted a dispensation. If it 
is a ‘sensitive interest’ (as agreed in advance by the Monitoring Officer), you do not have to 
disclose the nature of the interest. 

3

Agenda Item 2



Revised October 2022 

 

Other Registerable Interests: 

a) any unpaid directorships  

b) any body of which you are a member or are in a position of general control or management 

and to which you are nominated or appointed by your authority  

c) any body  

(i) exercising functions of a public nature  

(ii) directed to charitable purposes or  

(iii) one of whose principal purposes includes the influence of public opinion or policy (including 

any political party or trade union)  

 of which you are a member or in a position of general control or management 

Disclosure of Non- Registerable Interests 

Where a matter arises at a meeting which directly relates to your financial interest or well-being (and is 
not a DPI) or a financial interest or well-being of a relative or close associate, or a body included under 
Other Registerable Interests in Table 2 you must disclose the interest. You may speak on the matter 
only if members of the public are also allowed to speak at the meeting but otherwise must not 
take part in any discussion or vote on the matter and must not remain in the room unless you 

have been granted a dispensation. If it is a ‘sensitive interest’ (agreed in advance by the Monitoring 
Officer) you do not have to disclose the nature of the interest. 

Where a matter arises at a meeting which affects – 

a. your own financial interest or well-being; 

b. a financial interest or well-being of a friend, relative, close associate; or 

c. a financial interest or well-being of a body included under Other Registerable 
Interests as set out in Table 2 (as set out above and in the Members’ code of 
Conduct) 

you must disclose the interest. In order to determine whether you can remain in the meeting after 

disclosing your interest the following test should be applied. 

Where a matter (referred to in the paragraph above) affects the financial interest or well-being: 

a. to a greater extent than it affects the financial interests of the majority of 

inhabitants of the ward affected by the decision and; 

b. a reasonable member of the public knowing all the facts would believe that it 

would affect your view of the wider public interest 

You may speak on the matter only if members of the public are also allowed to speak at the 
meeting but otherwise must not take part in any discussion or vote on the matter and must 
not remain in the room unless you have been granted a dispensation. If it is a ‘sensitive 
interest’ (agreed in advance by the Monitoring Officer, you do not have to disclose the nature of 
the interest. 

Other declarations 

Members may wish to declare at the beginning of the meeting any other information they feel should 

be in the public domain in relation to an item on the agenda; such Member statements will be included 

in the minutes for transparency. 

4



SCHOOL IMPROVEMENT FORUM 
 

THURSDAY, 13 OCTOBER 2022 
 
PRESENT: Councillors Stuart Carroll (Chairman), David Coppinger (Vice-Chairman) 
and Catherine Del Campo 
 
Also in attendance: Councillor Sayonara Luxton, Councillor John Baldwin, Councillor 
Gurpreet Bhangra, Councillor Maureen Hunt and Navroop Mehat (All Saints Junior 
School) 
 
Officers: Mark Beeley, Clive Haines, Kelly Nash and Helen Huntley 
 
 
APOLOGIES FOR ABSENCE  
 
There were no apologies for absence received. 
 
DECLARATIONS OF INTEREST  
 
There were no declarations of interest received. 
 
MINUTES  
 
RESOLVED UNANIMOUSLY: That the minutes of the meeting held on 13th June 2022 
were approved as a true and accurate record. 
 
PROVISIONAL DATA FOR ALL PHASES  
 
Clive Haines, Deputy Director for Education, talked through the provisional data for all school 
phases. Each phase received a percentage rating, which considered the level of development 
and progress. A summary of the progress made: 
  

         In early years, 67% showed a good level of development, compared to 65% 
nationally. 

         For phonics in year 1, 74% were working at standard, compared to 75% nationally. 
o   This was a significant decline from 2019, due to the Covid lockdown. 
o   RBWM was currently rated 99th on the local authority league table. 

         For disadvantaged pupils, progress on phonics for year 1, 52% were working at 
standard. This was compared to 62% nationally. 

         For KS1, reading was at 69% (67% nationally), writing was at 59% (58% nationally) 
and maths was at 68% (also 68% nationally). 

         For disadvantaged pupils in KS1, reading was at 44% (51% nationally), writing was at 
31% (41% nationally) and maths was at 45% (52% nationally). 

         For KS2, 63% were meeting the expected standard, compared to 59% nationally. 
o   RBWM was placed in the top quintile of local authorities for KS2 and was also 

joint second in the south east local authority league table. 
         For disadvantaged pupils in KS2, 38% were meeting the expected standard, 

compared to 43% nationally. 
o   The disadvantage gap was at its highest level nationally since 2012. 

         For GCSE results, 78% of pupils received an English and Maths at grade 4 or above 
in 2022, this was an increase on previous years. 

         A Level results were broken down by each school. 
  

5

Agenda Item 3



The Chairman noted the significant dip in KS1 phonics, both in RBWM and at a national level. 
He asked if this was all due to the pandemic, or if there were other factors which also had an 
impact on development. 
  
Clive Haines explained that the pandemic had made development of phonics difficult as it was 
one of the most difficult things to teach online. Research which had been done so far in 
schools had showed that children were starting to catch up on their phonics development. 
Clive Haines hoped to bring a report to the School Improvement Forum once he had received 
the finalised data. 
  
The Chairman asked if this was the same issue for writing. 
  
Clive Haines confirmed that it was, children needed to be in school to properly develop their 
writing skills. 
  
Navroop Mehat, All Saints Junior School, said that reading had been encouraged at home 
during lockdown but phonics and writing suffered. However, she believed it would pick up 
again now that children were back in school. 
  
Councillor Del Campo asked if the phonics test was to understand the baseline of children 
coming into the school. 
  
Clive Haines clarified it was a standardised test that needed to be done and was not used for 
benchmarking purposes. The test could be used to identify which children needed additional 
support. 
  
Navroop Mehat added that it was a ‘moment in time’ test, it was to ensure that children were 
getting the right phonic sounds. 
  
Councillor Del Campo asked if RBWM had compared the data to other neighbouring local 
authorities which had a similar demographic makeup. 
  
Clive Haines said that comparisons were made both nationally and with the south east region. 
Benchmarking was now done at reception. 
  
Councillor Del Campo said that nationally there were very different authorities, she asked if 
comparisons could be made with similar authorities to RBWM. 
  
Clive Haines said it would be useful to do a comparison on this, particularly when comparing 
the disadvantaged pupil data. 
  
Councillor Del Campo commented on the GCSE results, 1 in 4 pupils were not achieving at 
least a grade 4 in the two core subjects, English and Maths. She asked if this was a concern. 
  
Clive Haines said it was not a concern, grade 4 was the median and a number of pupils were 
well above this grade too. 
  
Kelly Nash added that a number of schools had creative pathways for pupils who did not 
achieve the pass grade, schools were being innovative to ensure that things like vocational 
courses could be accessed. 
  
Councillor Del Campo asked why Furze Platt Secondary School had not reported their results. 
  
Clive Haines said it was the schools choice to report results as they were an academy. 
  
Councillor Coppinger asked if the data on Holyport College was regarding day pupils or if it 
was all pupils. 
  

6



Clive Haines did not have that information, but he would find out. 
  
ACTION – Clive Haines to find out whether the data referred to day pupils or those that 
were boarding at Holyport College. 
  
Councillor Baldwin noted that exam results in RBWM were better than the national average, 
he wondered if there was a specific reason why this was the case. 
  
Clive Haines said that catching up was done at KS4, accessibility and monitoring could be a 
reason why. 
  
The Chairman asked when the full finalised data would be ready. 
  
He was told that this was expected in December. 
 
ALL SAINTS JUNIOR SCHOOL  
 
Navroop Mehat updated the Forum on progress made at All Saints. A visit had recently been 
made by an individual who was interested in working at the school, she was really impressed 
by the value staff placed on the curriculum. Navroop Mehat shared data from the Year 6 SAT 
results, which were pleasing on the whole. The writing quality would improve as the current 
cohort had a number of pieces of writing to work on. A phonics consultant had been brought in 
as a concern had been the number of children who required phonics in Year 2 and Year 3. 
There was no longer a phonics need in the school, all children who required phonics support 
after Year 3 were pupils that were new to the school. Behaviour remained good and it was a 
shame that there had been a slight drop in numbers due to the ‘inadequate’ rating. Navroop 
Mehat appealed for help promoting the school, particularly as significant improvements and 
progress had been made. 
  
The Chairman asked about staff morale and the reaction from them to the changes that had 
been made to improve the school. 
  
Navroop Mehat said that staff were on board with the journey, they were all committed to 
changing the school for the better. The school needed to find someone permanent to take the 
school forward, it was important that whoever was appointed understood that stability was 
key. 
  
Clive Haines said that work was being done closely with the chosen sponsor of the school to 
ensure that the rapid improvement continued. 
  
Councillor Del Campo thanked Navroop Mehat for all her work and wished the school all the 
best for the Ofsted inspection. 
  
Councillor Baldwin said that he regularly spoke to parents of children at All Saints, they also 
had positive things to say about the leadership and the changes which had come in. He 
thanked Navroop Mehat and all her staff for their work. 
  
Councillor Bhangra said that he had attended All Saints when he was young, therefore the 
school was personally important to him. He was pleased to see the excellent progress which 
had been made. Councillor Bhangra asked what the school needed to do to ensure that it 
continued to improve. 
  
Navroop Mehat said that long term there was a plan in place and that the school needed to 
meet the targets which had been set by Ofsted. A good curriculum was in place and middle 
leaders had been developed. After the first year, the new head would be able to work on 
specific skills from the same plan. Ofsted could direct different things so the priorities could 
change. The strategic board worked closely with the school and they were very aware of what 
was going on. 

7



  
Councillor Hunt asked how many SEN children attended All Saints. 
  
Navroop Mehat said that there were around 15 children across the school, this had been 
highlighted as part of the Ofsted report that improvements to support for SEN children could 
be made. 
  
The Chairman said that it was important that improvements were seen and it was great to see 
the progress made and the positive comments that so many people had about the school. All 
Saints deserved to get back to where it had been. 
 
5 YEAR SEND STRATEGY AND OVERARCHING IMPLEMENTATION PLAN  
 
Kelly Nash, Area SENCO for Achieving for Children, outlined the consultation process for the 
strategy. Two online meetings had been hosted with parents and carers with a total of 84 
parents requesting a place. A participation day had been organised at Windsor Youth Centre 
to hear young people’s thoughts on SEND provision. A conference was also held at Moor Hall, 
with over 40 key stakeholders in attendance. The vision statement for RBWM was that every 
child “will be happy, healthy and achieve their fullest potential.” All children and young people 
were entitled to an education that enabled them to progress. The strategy included the 
mission statement and how RBWM would achieve the priorities set out in the strategy. 
Priorities of the strategy included: 
  

         Young people with SEND and their families were the experts in understanding their 
child’s needs. 

         Children and young people with SEND to be identified earlier and immediate action 
would be taken. 

         All RBWM mainstream provision would be welcoming, accessible and inclusive to all 
so that they could meet the vast majority of children and young people who have 
special education needs. 

         An increased focus on earlier targeted and multi-agency intervention to offer help and 
meet needs at the earliest opportunity. 

         Development of the right range of specialist provision to ensure that as many young 
people as possible could be educated in a local educational setting. 

         Young people with SEND would be helped to become confident so that they could 
lead independent and fulfilling lives in their local communities. 

  
Kelly Nash and Helen Huntley outlined the workstreams and activities which had taken place 
to support these priorities. 
  
The Chairman commented on the inclusion ambassadors and asked for some detail on who 
the ambassadors were. 
  
Kelly Nash explained that there were currently seven inclusion ambassadors, it was important 
to hear from and build links with young people and that they were representing their setting 
and peers. Ambassadors were also able to work towards a qualification as part of their role. 
  
The Chairman asked what the timeline was for the implementation of the priorities from the 
strategy. 
  
Helen Huntley said that work was being done with the Parent Carer Forum, the strategy was 
planned across five years and therefore the Forum needed to decide which elements should 
be a priority. Some priorities needed to be led by other teams, while other priorities were time 
limited. There was an aim to have parents, carers and practitioners on the various work 
streams which had been planned around the main priorities of the strategy. 
  

8



Councillor Del Campo noted that priority four considered early intervention, she felt this was a 
vital priority. The waiting list time for CAMHS was an issue and children who needed support 
needed to be added to the waiting list at the earliest opportunity. Another priority was that 
children and families were ‘experts’, she broadly agreed with this statement but this was not 
always true. It was pleasing to see proposals of investment across the borough and it would 
be great to have an ambassador presence in every school in RBWM. 
  
Kelly Nash said that schools were encouraged to be needs-led, the team could signpost 
schools very quickly if needed. 
  
Councillor Hunt said it was an excellent strategy. She shared the experience of a resident who 
needed additional support for her son. After putting the resident in contact with officers, they 
had received all the right information. Councillor Hunt asked if there was a way residents could 
contact officers directly. 
  
Helen Huntley referenced a green paper which had come out last year, which stated that all 
early years setting should have a SENCO. This would make a big difference, particularly when 
determining if gaps in education were due to the pandemic or due to a special need. Parents 
were able to apply for an EHCP for their child, a session would be run with the Parent Carer 
Forum on how to apply for this. 
  
Clive Haines added that an excellent early years pathway was in place, a number of children 
were attending school who had not been identified for a EHCP when they should have one in 
place. Work was being done in this area. 
  
Councillor Hunt said that the child in question was autistic and the parent had problems 
contacting the council, which was why they had contacted their local councillor. Councillor 
Hunt asked where was best to go for residents to receive direct support. 
  
Clive Haines said that parents could request an EHCP, the process was outlined on the 
council website. 
  
Helen Huntley asked if the parent was aware of the RBWM local offer, this was a statutory 
part of the website. 
  
Kelly Nash said that there was an independent advice and support service, which could help 
parents. Information was available as part of the local offer. 
 
EMOTIONAL RELATED SCHOOL AVOIDANCE  
 
Kelly Nash said that emotional related school avoidance (ERSA) was young people who 
experienced difficulties attending school due to a wide range of factors which had led to an 
emotional response to school attendance. Some children could attend school but showed 
signs of anxiety or stress, while other children could be absent from school for a significant 
period of time. Children with ERSA often did want to attend school, but were unable to do so 
due to things like anxiety. A toolkit pilot had been launched in September 2021, which 
provided guidance and further information for schools on ERSA. Schools could do an audit 
and consider a checklist along with a support plan for individual children. Many schools had 
found the toolkit to be useful, however, there were a number of schools that had not used the 
toolkit or were not aware that the toolkit was available. A ERSA link assistant psychologist had 
been appointed, which would encourage schools to identify an ERSA lead member of staff 
which could help promote training and information. A ‘pupils educationally at risk’ panel 
provided strategic leadership to ensure that children not attending school were provided with 
effective support in an appropriate setting. 
  
The Chairman asked what the trend of ERSA was in RBWM schools at the moment. 
  

9



Kelly Nash said that 22% of children were regarded as ‘persistently absence’ nationally, in 
RBWM this was 10%. The number of home educated pupils had doubled from around 100 to 
around 200 children. The Education Welfare service had collected data and 37% of referrals 
into the team were for children who were affected by ERSA. A lot of these children enjoyed 
being at home during the course of the pandemic and the transition back to the traditional 
school environment had been particularly difficult. 
  
The Chairman asked how this integrated with colleagues and teams in the NHS. 
  
Kelly Nash explained that the project was being worked on closely with the CCG, there was 
muti-agency representation on the working group. 
  
Councillor Del Campo considered that particularly in the current cost of living crisis, there 
would be concern from parents about children being absent from school and potential fines 
which could be made.  
  
Kelly Nash said that the Education Welfare service supported parents and carers and looked 
to build a trusting relationship which ensured a collaborative approach. 
  
Councillor Del Campo felt that the message needed to be reinforced with the toolkits and 
repeated so that more schools were aware of the toolkit and how it could be used. 
  
Clive Haines added that fining was a last resort for the council, they wanted children to attend 
school. Work was done closely with parents and young people, each case was different. 
 
DATES OF FUTURE MEETINGS  
 
The next meeting would take place on Monday 6th February 2023 at 5pm. 
 
 
The meeting, which began at 5.00 pm, finished at 6.35 pm 
 

CHAIRMAN………………………………. 
 

DATE……………………………….......... 
 

10


	Agenda
	2 Declarations of Interest
	3 Minutes



